November 18, 2019
BID ADDENDUM NO. 3

Lakeside Union School District

Switch and Wireless AP with Installation Erate 2020-2021 RFP 470# 200001986

The above referenced District bid is hereby amended as follows:

SEE THE FOLLOWING 11 PAGES FOR ADDENDUM NO. 3 WITH THE FOLLOWING
INFORMATION:
-

The attached forms, Labor and Material Payment Bond and Performance Bond
should be included and completed with your submittal for the “Switch and Wireless AP With
Installation Erate 2020-2021 RFP”. Also on page 22 and 23, please add the following forms to the list
of Contract Documents: Labor and Material Payment Bond and Performance Bond

-

Please add the below paragraph to Page 15 of RFP as #35, before General Conditions:
The successful bidder and each of its subcontractors of any tier will be required to pay not less than
the general prevailing rates of per-diem wages in the locality in which the work is to be performed
for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the contract (“Prevailing Wages”). A copy of the
per diem rates of Prevailing Wages applicable to the Project is on file and available for review
at http://www/dir/ca/gov/dlsr/pwd/index.htm

-

Q and A’s

-

Substitution Requests and Responses

This notice of addendum must be signed, dated and returned with your Company Bid submittal by the
scheduled due date of 12:00 p.m. (PDT) Friday November 22, 2019.

Company Name: ________________________________________________________________________
Company Representative: _________________________________/________________________________
Signature

Title: ____________________________________

Print

Date: ___________________

Email: ___________________________________

LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND
(CALIFORNIA PUBLIC WORK)
WHEREAS, the Lakeside Union School District (the “Obligee”) has awarded to
____________________________________________ (the “Principal”) a contract for the Work
commonly described as the:
“Switch and Wireless AP with Installation E-rate 2020-2021 RFP”
(the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Work to be performed by the Principal is more

particularly set forth in that certain Agreement between the Principal and the Obligee, dated
___________________, 20___, which Agreement and all other contract documents set forth
therein (collectively, the “Contract Documents”) are incorporated herein and made a part hereof
by this reference; and
WHEREAS, by the terms of the Contract Documents, and in accordance with California
Civil Code §§ 9550 et seq., the Principal is required to furnish a bond for the prompt, full and
faithful payment to any Claimant, as hereinafter defined, for all labor, materials or services used,
or reasonably required for use, in the performance of the Work on the Project (“Bond”); and
WHEREAS, the term "Claimant" shall refer to any of the persons described in California
Civil Code § 9100, who provide or furnish labor, materials or services used or reasonably required
for use in the performance of the Work under the Contract Documents, without regard to whether
such labor, materials or services were sold, leased or rented.
NOW THEREFORE, we, _______________________________________, as Principal,
and _____________________________________________, as Surety, are held and firmly
bound, along with our respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly
and severally, unto Lakeside Union School District, as Obligee, for payment of the penal sum of
________________________________ Dollars ($_______________), said sum being not less
than one hundred percent (100%) of the total amount payable by the Obligee under the terms of
the Contract Documents, in lawful money of the United States, as more particularly set forth
herein.
This Bond shall inure to the benefit of all Claimants so as to give them, or their assigns
and successors, a right of action upon this Bond.
The condition of the obligation is such that if the Principal, or its subcontractors,
heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns fail to pay (1) any Claimant, (2)
amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to Work or labor
performed on the Project, or (3) amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid to
the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of the Principal
and its subcontractors under Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with
respect to the Work and labor, then Surety will pay for the same in an amount not to

exceed the sum specified above and, if an action is brought to enforce the liability on the
Bond, the Surety shall pay such reasonable attorneys’ fees as fixed by the court, as set
forth in Civil Code § 9554.
If the Principal promptly, fully and faithfully makes payment to any Claimant for all labor,
materials or services used or reasonably required for use in the performance of the Work, then
this obligation shall be void; otherwise, it shall be, and remain, in full force and effect.
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of
time, alteration, deletion, addition, or any other modification to the terms of the Contract
Documents, the Work to be performed thereunder, the Specifications or the Drawings, or any
other portion of the Contract Documents, shall in any way limit, restrict or otherwise affect its
obligations under this Bond; the Surety hereby waives notice from the Obligee of any such
change, extension of time, alteration, deletion, addition or other modification to the Contract
Documents, the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents, the Drawings or the
Specifications of any other portion of the Contract Documents.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and Surety have executed this instrument this
______ day of ________________, 20__ by their duly authorized agents or representatives.

(Corporate Seal)

(Principal Name)

By:
(Signature)

(Typed or Printed Name)

Title:

(Corporate Seal)

(Surety Name)

By:
(Signature of Attorney-in-Fact for Surety)

(Attach Attorney-in-Fact Certificate)

(Typed or Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact)

(Address)

(_____)
(Area Code and Telephone Number of Surety)

IMPORTANT: THIS IS A REQUIRED FORM.
Surety companies executing bonds must possess a certificate of authority from the California
Insurance Commissioner authorizing them to write surety insurance defined in California
Insurance Code section 105, and if the Work or Project is financed, in whole or in part, with federal,
grant or loan funds, Surety’s name must also appear on the Treasury Department’s most current
list (Circular 570 as amended).
Any claims under this bond may be addressed to:
(Name and Address of Surety)

(Name and Address of agent or representative
for service for service of process in California)

Telephone:

Telephone:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

)
) ss.
COUNTY OF _________________ )
On ____________________, before me, ____________________________, a Notary Public,
personally appeared _______________________________, who proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.
WITNESS my hand and official seal.
(SEAL)
Notary Public in and for said State

Commission expires:

NOTE: A copy of the power-of-attorney to local representatives of the Surety must be attached
hereto.

PERFORMANCE BOND
(CALIFORNIA PUBLIC WORK)
WHEREAS, the Lakeside Union School District (the “Obligee”) has awarded to
_____________________________________________ (the “Principal”) a contract for the Work
commonly described as:
“Switch and Wireless AP with Installation E-rate 2020-2021 RFP”
(the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Work to be performed by the Principal is more particularly set forth in that
certain Agreement between the Principal and the Obligee, dated _________________, 20__,
which Agreement and all other contract documents set forth therein (collectively, the “Contract
Documents”) are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference; and

WHEREAS, by the terms of the Contract Documents, the Principal is required to furnish a
bond ensuring the Principal’s prompt, full and faithful performance of the Work under the Contract
Documents (“Bond”).

NOW THEREFORE, we, ______________________________________, as Principal,
and _______________________________________________, as Surety, are held and firmly
bound, along with our respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly
and severally, unto Lakeside Union School District, as Obligee, for payment of the penal sum of
_______________________ Dollars ($__________), said sum being not less than one hundred
percent (100%) of the total amount payable by the Obligee under the terms of the Contract
Documents, in lawful money of the United States, as more particularly set forth herein.

The condition of the obligation is such that if the Principal promptly, fully and faithfully
performs each and all of the obligations and things to be done and performed by the Principal in
strict accordance with the terms of the Contract Documents as they may be modified or amended
from time to time, and if the Principal indemnifies and saves harmless the Obligee and all of its
officers, agents and employees from any and all losses, liability and damages, claims, judgments,
liens, costs, and fees of every description which may be incurred by the Obligee by reason of the
failure or default on the part of the Principal in the performance of any or all of the terms or the
obligations of the Contract Documents, including all modifications and amendments thereto, and
any warranties or guarantees required thereunder, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise, it
shall be, and remain, in full force and effect.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, adjustment
of the Contract Time, adjustment of the Contract Price, alterations, deletions, additions, or any
other modifications to the terms of the Contract Documents, the Work to be performed thereunder,
or to the Specifications or the Drawings shall limit, restrict or otherwise impair Surety’s obligations
or Obligee’s rights hereunder. Surety hereby waives notice from the Obligee of any such changes,

adjustments of Contract Time, adjustments of Contract Price, alterations, deletions, additions or
other modifications to the Contract Documents, the Work to be performed under the Contract
Documents, or the Drawings or the Specifications.
In the event of the Obligee’s termination of the Contract due to the Principal’s breach or
default of the Contract Documents, within twenty (20) days after written notice from the Obligee
to the Surety of the Principal’s breach or default of the Contract Documents and Obligee’s
termination of the Contract, the Surety shall notify Obligee in writing of Surety’s assumption of
obligations hereunder by its election to either remedy the default or breach of the Principal or to
take charge of the Work of the Contract Documents and complete the Work at its own expense
(“Notice of Election”); provided, however, that the procedure by which the Surety undertakes to
discharge its obligations under this Bond shall be subject to the advance written approval of the
Obligee, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, limited or restricted. The insolvency
of the Principal or the Principal’s mere denial of a failure of performance or default under the
Contract Documents shall not by itself, without the Surety’s prompt, diligent inquiry and
investigation of such denial, be justification for Surety’s failure to give the Notice of Election or
for its failure to promptly remedy the failure of performance or default of the Principal or to
complete the Work.
In the event the Surety fails to issue its Notice of Election to Obligee within the time specified
herein, the Obligee may take all such action or actions necessary to cure or remedy the Principal's
failure of performance or default or to complete the Work. The Principal and the Surety shall be
each jointly and severally liable to the Obligee for all damages and costs sustained by the Obligee
as a result of the Principal’s failure of performance under the Contract Documents or default in its
performance of obligations thereunder, including without limitation the costs of cure or completion
exceeding the then remaining balance of the Contract Price; provided that the Surety’s liability
hereunder for the costs of performance, damages and other costs sustained by the Obligee upon
the Principal’s failure of performance under or default under the Contract Documents shall be
limited to the penal sum hereof, which shall be deemed to include the costs or value of any
Changes of any Work which increases the Contract Price.

The Principal and Surety agree that if the Obligee is required to engage the services of an
attorney in connection with enforcement of the Bond, Principal and Surety shall pay Obligee’s
reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred, with or without suit, in addition to the above sum.
In the event that suit or other proceeding is brought upon this Bond by the Obligee, the Surety
shall pay to the Obligee all costs, expenses and fees incurred by the Obligee in connection
therewith, including without limitation, attorneys’ fees.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and Surety have executed this instrument this
________ day of ________________, 20__ by their duly authorized agents or representatives.

(Corporate Seal)

(Principal Name)
By:

(Signature)

(Typed or Printed Name / Title)

(Corporate Seal)
(Surety Name)
By:
(Signature of Attorney-in-Fact for Surety)

(Attach Attorney-in-Fact Certificate)

(Typed or Printed Name)

(Address)
(______)
(Area Code and Telephone Number)

IMPORTANT: THIS IS A REQUIRED FORM.
Surety companies executing bonds must possess a certificate of authority from the California
Insurance Commissioner authorizing them to write surety insurance defined in California
Insurance Code section 105, and if the Work or Project is financed, in whole or in part, with federal,
grant or loan funds, Surety’s name must also appear on the Treasury Department’s most current
list (Circular 570 as amended).
Any claims under this bond may be addressed to:
(Name and Address of Surety)

(Name and Address of agent or representative
for service for service of process in California)

Telephone:

Telephone:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF _________________

)
) ss.
)

On ____________________, before me, ____________________________, a Notary Public, personally
appeared _______________________________, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.
WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(SEAL)
Notary Public in and for said State

Commission expires:

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Q1: Switches are to be physically installed and configured by the contractor?
A1: Yes.

Q2: Indoor access points are replacing existing and no wiring is needed?
A2: Yes, these would hookup directly to current CAT6 wiring, unless it is a new location needing
wire pulled in.
Q3: Outdoor access points wiring is only required for new locations shown on the maps?
A3: Yes, this is true. There were no new inside locations, just outside.

Q4: Contractor is to configure and physically install all access points and virtual controllers?
A4: Yes.

Q5: Rack mounts are to be installed by the contractor?
A5: Yes.

Q6: If the location has switches that are not in a rack, it is the contractor responsibility to move
switches/equipment into the rack?
A6: Yes.

Q7: Are prevailing wages required?
A7: Please note any Public Works jobs in excess of $1,000.00, are required to pay prevailing
wages for labor.

1. PUBLIC WORKS: Completion of this contract may require a service provider to install
equipment and cabling which will increase the scope of this bid and cause it to
become subject to public works bidding requirements. To the extent the project is
considered to be a public works project, it will be subject to all applicable provisions of
the Public Contract Code, Labor Code, and other laws, regulations, rules and other
governmental requirements relating to public works construction, including, without

limitation, requirements for payment of prevailing wages, and the successful vendor
shall be required to know and comply with any and all such applicable requirements.
In entering into a public works contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or
materials pursuant to a public works contract, the successful vendor or subcontractor
offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, and interest in and to all
causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or
under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of
Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods,
services or materials pursuant to the public works contract or the subcontract. This
assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders
final payment to the successful vendor, without further acknowledgement by the parties.

Any contractor participating in this opportunity must have a valid California Class AGeneral Engineering Contractor’s license and/or a California Class C-4 Contractor’s
license.

The successful bidder and each of its subcontractors of any tier will be required to pay
not less than the general prevailing rates of per-diem wages in the locality in which the
work is to be performed for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the contract
(“Prevailing Wages”). A copy of the per diem rates of Prevailing Wages applicable to the
Project is on file and available for review at http://www/dir/ca/gov/dlsr/pwd/index.htm

Q8: Please confirm that a C7 contractor’s license is required?
A8: Yes, a C7 contractor’s license is required.

Q9: For the (29) new Outdoor AP cabling locations:
Q: What type of cabling is required for ea? (Cat. 6 / Cat. 6A)?
A: Cat6
Q: How many cables per location? (1 or 2)
A: One per location
Q: Does LUSD have a preferred Manufacturer and Cable partner?
A: ICC or Berk-Tek is preferred
Q10: For the (33) Tripp Lite Smart Racks –
Q: Are we just providing or are we to include installation. Will any of these be
replacing existing cabinets that will need to be removed and swapped out?

A: Racks are to be installed. All racks will NOT be replacing any existing. Racks are
being put in where a switch is on a shelf, but no current rack.
Q11: Please confirm if configuration is required for switches & APs?
A11: Yes, it is required
Q12: For new AP cable installation are we to bid CAT6A or CAT6?
A12: Cat6
Q13: For bidding purposes are we to bid plenum or riser rated cable?
A13: Riser

SUBSTITUTION REQUESTS AND RESPONSES
We are denying the substitution request based on specifications not met by the Aruba brand:
Aruba outdoor APs do not support WiFi 6 (802.11ax), they are 802.11ac wave 2 only and only
have 1G interfaces (10/100/1000Base-T and SFP)
Aruba outdoor AP IOT only supports BLE (Bluetooth Low Energy) but not Zipbee.
Aruba 8320 Switch only supports 1G, 10G, and 40G interfaces across all models in that
platform. It does not support 2.5 or 5G interfaces.
Must support 12 units in a stack - Aruba supports only 8
Must be manageable by Ruckus SmartZone network controller.
Must support Ruckus Campus Fabric.

